

**BOARD OF TRUSTEES**  
**UNIVERSITY OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA**  
**UDC RESOLUTION 2015- \_\_\_\_\_**

**SUBJECT: Notice of Proposed Rulemaking- 8B DCMR, Chapter 2- Administration and Management**

**WHEREAS**, pursuant to D.C. Code §38-1202.01 (b), the Board of Trustees has the authority to adopt, prescribe, amend, repeal, and enforce bylaws, rules, and regulations it considers necessary for the governance and administration of the University; and

**WHEREAS**, the administration and management of the University are governed by the provisions of 8B DCMR Chapter 2; and

**WHEREAS**, the Board wishes to define the structure of the University administration requiring revision of specific regulations; and

**THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED**, that the Board of Trustees of the University of the District of Columbia hereby approves the attached DCMR regulations; and

**BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED**, that the Board of Trustees of the University of the District of Columbia hereby takes proposed rulemaking action to amend Chapter 2 of the University Rules (Title 8B DCMR); and

**BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED**, that the University administration as defined in this Chapter shall be referred to as follows effective immediately:

- The Executive Vice President shall now be titled Chief Operating Officer;
- The Vice President for Student Affairs shall now be titled Chief Student Development and Support Officer;
- The Chief Executive Officer – Community College shall now be titled Provost of the Community College;
- The Provost/Vice President for Academic Affairs shall now be titled Chief Academic Officer; and

**BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED**, that the General Counsel is hereby directed to publish this Notice of Proposed Rulemaking in the D.C. Register as soon as is practicable for a comment period of not less than thirty (30) days, in accordance with the provisions of D.C. Official Code §2-205 (a).

Submitted by the Operations Committee

October 27, 2015

Approved by the Board of Trustees:

December 8, 2015

---

Elaine A. Crider  
Chairperson of the Board

## **200 THE PRESIDENT OF THE UNIVERSITY**

- 200.1 The Chief Executive Officer of the University, appointed by the Board of Trustees (the "Board") pursuant to D.C. Official Code § 38-1202.06(10), shall be the President of the University of the District of Columbia (the "President"). The President shall report directly to the Board.
- 200.2 Whenever a vacancy exists in the position of the President, or whenever the Board has notice that a vacancy will exist, the Board shall appoint a committee to be Chaired by a voting member of the Board to conduct an orderly search for candidates for appointment to the position of President. When the position of the President is vacant, the Board shall appoint an individual to serve as Interim President or Acting President within 30 days of the vacancy.
- 200.3 Appointment of the President, including the renewal of an existing appointment, shall be by affirmative vote of a majority of the Board.
- 200.4 The terms and conditions of the appointment of the President, including compensation and benefits, shall be set forth in a contract of employment which shall be negotiated with the appointee in a manner directed by the Board and shall be subject to ratification by an affirmative vote of the majority of the Board.
- 200.5 A housing allowance or a University residence in the District of Columbia may be provided for the President.

## **201 DISMISSAL OF THE PRESIDENT FOR CAUSE**

- 201.1 The Board may dismiss the President at any time for cause.
- 201.2 Upon request made within ten (10) calendar days after the Board action of dismissal, the President shall be furnished a statement of the charges against him or her.
- 201.3 If the President demands a hearing on his or her dismissal, a hearing shall be held within ten (10) calendar days after the receipt of the charges by the President.
- 201.4 The hearing shall be held before the Committee of the Whole of the Board, in executive session, in accordance with procedures adopted by the Board. The President shall be entitled to present a response and defense to the charges presented, either personally or through counsel of the President's choosing.

- 201.5 The Board may retain special counsel to represent the Board for the purposes of this section as the Board deems appropriate.
- 201.6 Dismissal of the President for cause shall be by a majority of the Board.
- 202 GENERAL AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT**
- 202.1 The President shall have authority and responsibility for the academic and administrative affairs and operations of the University and the components thereof established under Section 100.3 subject to the provisions of this Title and applicable law.
- 202.2 The President may delegate to his or her subordinates any of the duties and authority of the office of President, except the following:
- (a) Service as a nonvoting ex officio member of the Board; and
  - (b) Responsibilities reserved solely to the President under the provisions of this subtitle or other applicable law or regulation.
- 202.3 The President shall fix the calendar of the University.
- 202.4 Upon the recommendation of the faculty, the President shall, in the name of the Board, award degrees to candidates who meet all of the requirements and prerequisites for the respective degree or concentration.
- 202.5 The President shall provide for awarding fellowships, scholarships, and academic prizes from appropriations, gifts, or endowments approved for these purposes.
- 202.6 Subject to the provisions of this Title and applicable law, the President may appoint, promote, demote, and dismiss University employees. The President may also determine compensation for all administrators and non-administrators at pay grade level 2A and below. The President shall recommend for approval by the Board through the Executive Committee, or committee determined by the Board Chair the compensation of all administrators and non-administrators at pay grade level 1A and above.
- 203 FUND-RAISING AND GIFTS**
- 203.1 The President shall develop, initiate, implement, and approve fund-raising campaigns for the benefit of the University.

- 203.2 The President may determine, consistent with any expressed intent of the donor, if applicable:
- (a) The purpose(s) for which the gift shall be used; and
  - (b) Whether income or principal amount, or both, shall be used.
- 203.3 The President may utilize gifts to support established University programs or to fund new or special programs, in accordance with the provisions of this subtitle.
- 203.4 The President shall determine whether any condition on the receipt of a gift, or the purpose(s) for which the gift will be used, will require expenditure of additional or supplementary funds by the University and shall provide for inclusion of required expenditures in the University financial plan subject to Board approval. In no event shall the acceptance of any gift by the University constitute a commitment requiring expenditures in excess of budgeted items.
- 203.5 The President may return to the donor all or any unused portion of a gift of personal property when the purposes of the gift have been fulfilled or fulfillment has become impossible or impractical and alternative uses are precluded.

## **204 BUDGET AND FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION**

- 204.1 The President shall annually prepare a budget for the University, including a plan for operating and capital expenditures and shall provide the Board copies of the proposal and all necessary back up documentation not less than 5 business days prior to any Board or Committee on Budget and Finance for review and consideration of approval. As part of the budget process, the President shall prepare a request to the Mayor and Council for District appropriations for the support of the University subject to approval by the Board prior to submission to the Mayor or the Council of the District of Columbia of a final budget.
- 204.2 Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the President shall prepare a financial plan for control of expenditures by the University. Upon approval of the financial plan by the Board, the President shall manage the expenditures of the University in accordance with the financial plan. All modifications of the financial plan including shifting or reallocations of funds within programs or other areas over \$250,000 must be approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and reported to the Board. Cumulative modifications during the fiscal year of the financial plan that are \$1 million and over must be approved by the Board.

- 204.3 During the fiscal year, the President shall recommend to the Board for its approval modifications of the financial plan based on changes in the District appropriation, actual or projected revenues, cost of programs and operations, academic program needs, or other factors. Reprogramming of appropriated budget authority shall be in accordance with applicable District law.
- 204.4 The President shall make timely recommendations to the Board for the establishment or modification of tuition, fees, and other assessments to be paid by students of the University.
- 204.5 The President shall make recommendations to the Board for a capital improvement program, including recommendations for the addition of a new project or a deletion, substantial modification, or change in the priority of an approved project for Board approval and shall provide all necessary back up documentation necessary not less than 5 business days prior to any Board or Committee on Budget and Finance for review and consideration of approval.
- 204.6 The President may negotiate and approve indirect cost rates to be applied to contracts and grants. The use of indirect cost funds shall be included in the annual financial plan.
- 204.7 The President may approve the write-off of debts owed to the University deemed uncollectible, subject to ratification by the Board as part of the financial plan. The President shall ensure that adequate reserves are maintained to allow for uncollectible debts.
- 204.8 The President may write off routine disallowed claims under grants and contracts against funds received from the federal government in reimbursement of indirect costs.

## **205 EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS**

- 205.1 Except as otherwise specifically provided in this section or in this Title, the President may execute on behalf of the University all contracts and other documents, including documents to solicit and accept pledges, gifts, and grants.
- 205.2 Notwithstanding any provision of this section to the contrary, the President may execute all documents necessary in the exercise of the President's duties when an emergency precludes prior submission to the Board; Provided, that in all cases the President shall submit to the Board within forty-eight 48 hours a written justification for actions taken, the

impact, including fiscal, of the actions and a request for ratification of the action(s) by majority vote of the Board.

- 205.3 The President may provide for execution claims against debtors in bankruptcy, in receivership, or in liquidation, and against estates of deceased persons.
- 205.4 Specific authorization by the Board shall be required for the following documents or any transaction that would establish an exception to the University Rules as set forth in this subtitle:
- (a) Any commitment for more than seven (7) years; or
  - (b) All Capital Procurements as presented in the Capital Budget on annual basis;
  - (c) Each transaction that would require any of the following:
    - (1) Modification of the financial plan in excess of the reprogramming authority delegated to the President;
    - (2) Modification of the Capital Budget; or
    - (3) Obligating the University to expenditures or costs for which there is no established funding source.
  - (d) Any contracts and change orders/modifications, other than those already approved in the Capital Budget, resulting in a commitment of greater than four million dollars (\$4,000,000) in a single fiscal year for any Capital Procurement; and
  - (e) Any commitment greater than one million dollars (\$1,000,000) in a single fiscal year for all other University Procurements.
- 205.5 Specific authorization by the Board shall be required for any of the following:
- (a) Acceptance of any pledge or gift in excess of one million dollars (\$ 1,000,000) in cash or estimated value;
  - (b) Agreements for the provision of employee group insurance benefits;
  - (c) Affiliation agreements involving direct financial obligations or commitments by the University to programs or projects not included in the financial plan;

- (d) Applications for licenses to operate radio or television broadcast equipment; and
- (e) Agreements under which the University assumes liability for the conduct of persons other than University officers, employees, agents, students, invitees, and guests. This restriction shall not apply to agreements under which the University assumes responsibility for the condition of property in its custody.

**206 REPEALED**

**207 RESERVED**

**208 COMPENSATION OF ADMINISTRATORS**

208.1 The Board shall determine compensation for administrators and non-administrators at Grade level 1A and above, including initial compensation upon appointment and subsequent changes in compensation, upon recommendation of the President through the Executive Committee or appropriate committee determined by the Board Chair.

208.2 The President shall determine compensation for each executive appointment at grade level 2A and below, including initial compensation upon appointment and subsequent changes in compensation, in accordance with the level of responsibility of the position, the experience and qualifications of the appointee, and other factors, in accordance with the administrative pay scale approved by the Board.

**209 RESERVED**

**210 EXECUTIVE APPOINTMENTS: GENERAL PROVISIONS**

210.1 In order to allow the President to appoint highly qualified and experienced executive talent to senior administrative positions, as well as to provide flexibility in making top administrative appointments, the President is authorized to make executive appointments to designated positions in the Educational Service, in accordance with the provisions of §§ 210 through 212 subject to the provisions of this Title and applicable law.

- 210.2 Except as required under § 212, an executive appointment may be made on a noncompetitive basis. Each executive appointee shall be qualified based on job description submitted by the President and approved by the Executive Committee for the position to which he or she is appointed. The Executive Committee shall also review the qualifications of the appointee being considered prior to the appointment being made.
- 210.3 Executive appointments are "at will" appointments and executive appointees shall serve at the pleasure of the President. A person serving under an executive appointment shall not have any job tenure or protection in that position. An executive appointment may be terminated at any time without appeal or right to compensation.
- 210.4 A University employee who is a permanent incumbent and who is serving in a position designated to be filled by executive appointment shall retain all the rights and benefits of his or her permanent employment status and shall not be converted to an executive appointment. However, once the incumbent vacates the position (due to reassignment, resignation, or other reason), the person subsequently appointed to fill the position shall be subject to the executive appointment provisions of this section.
- 210.5 The President shall not enter into any agreements with interim/acting executive appointees that grant tenure or right of employment in any faculty, administrative or other University position unless such person holds permanent or tenured faculty rank at the University or approved by the Executive Committee.

## **211 EXECUTIVE APPOINTMENTS: NON-ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATORS**

- 211.1 The following administrative positions shall be filled by executive appointment and shall be ratified by the majority vote of the Board:
- (a) Chief Operating Officer (COO): The COO has university wide authority over business operations. The COO reports to the President.
  - (b) Chief Student Development and Support Officer (CSDSO): The CSDSO has university wide authority over student support and student success. The CSDSO reports to the President.
  - (c) Provost of the Community College: The University of the District of Columbia Community College is a Branch campus of the University. It offers courses in educational programs leading to an associate's degree or certificate. The administrative head of the

Community College is titled the Provost of the Community College, and reports to the President.

- (e) Chief of Staff: The Chief of Staff has authority over external affairs, coordinates the activities of the Offices of the Board and President, as well as the work of the Cabinet. The Chief of Staff reports to the President.
- (f) General Counsel The General Counsel provides advice and counsel to the University stakeholders on all legal matters, and directs the activities of outside counsel working on behalf of the University. The General Counsel reports to the President with a dotted line to the Board.
- (g) Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor is responsible for conducting internal audits of the University's operations. The Internal Auditor reports to the President with a dotted line to the Board.

- 211.2 The President may designate any position which reports directly to the President or any senior management or legal position of Administrative Salary Grade Level of 2B or higher which reports directly to a vice president to be filled by executive appointment.
- 211.3 The President, in his or her discretion, may conduct a formal or informal search or provide for a recruitment process to fill a position by executive appointment under this section, except that the President shall provide for a formal search and selection process, including active faculty and Board participation, to fill the position of Provost of the Community College.
- 211.4 An employee of the University with permanent status who accepts an executive appointment under this section shall not have reversionary rights to return to the same position upon termination of the executive appointment. However, upon termination of the executive appointment, the former executive appointee shall retain his or her employment status at the University and shall be assigned to a position at the same level that he or she held at the time of the executive appointment.
- 211.5 A person newly hired under this section may, upon termination of the executive appointment, apply for competitive appointment to a position in the Educational Service for which he or she is qualified.

## **212 EXECUTIVE APPOINTMENTS: ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATORS**

- 212.1 The following positions shall be filled by executive appointment:
- (a) Chief Academic Officer (CAO): The Chief Academic Officer has university wide authority over academic program coordination and quality. The CAO reports to the President.
  - (b) Deans of academic colleges.
- 212.2 The appointment of faculty members to serve in administrative positions which report directly to the CAO or a Dean shall be an executive appointment.
- 212.3 The President shall provide for a formal search and selection process, including active faculty and Board participation, to fill the positions of CAO and Academic Dean. If the CAO or an Academic Dean position is vacated, the President shall name an acting for a period not to exceed one (1) year from the date of the vacancy, and administrative leave shall not be considered time in the position.
- 212.4 A person newly hired for the position of CAO or Academic Dean may be granted academic title and rank with tenure in the department in which he or she is qualified at the recommendation of the President and approval by the Board through the Executive Committee or Committee designated by the Chair.
- 212.5 A person who holds permanent or tenured faculty rank at the University and who accepts an appointment to an academic administrative position under this section shall not be required to resign from his or her faculty position and shall have the right to return to his or her faculty position upon termination of the executive appointment.
- 212.6 During a simultaneous appointment to an academic administrative position under this section, a faculty member shall be subject to the terms and conditions of employment set forth in the executive appointment. The faculty member shall be deemed to be on leave of absence from his or her faculty position, but shall retain simultaneous faculty title and rank.
- 212.7 When a person holding faculty rank accepts an executive appointment to an academic administrative position, he or she shall be a full-time, twelve (12) month employee and shall receive compensation and benefits as set forth in the executive appointment, in accordance with the provisions of § 208.2, until termination of the executive appointment.

## **213 ACTING APPOINTMENTS**

- 213.1 The President may appoint a current employee to serve in an "acting" status in a position designated to be filled by executive appointment without requiring that employee to resign from his or her current position.
- 213.2 Compensation of appointees with "acting" status shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of §§ 208, 210, 211, 212 and other applicable subsections of this chapter.
- 213.3 Service in an "acting" status in a position designated to be filled by executive appointment shall be limited to one (1) year. The President shall seek Board approval for an extension forty five (45) days prior to the year ending if he/she determines and can demonstrate that additional time is needed. Should an extension be approved by the Board, the President shall provide the Board immediately with a plan and time line for making the permanent appointment within ninety days (90) of the end of the one (1) year period should the appointment be necessary. The Board may approve an extension or renewal of an acting appointment for no more than one (1) additional year due to extenuating circumstances as determined by the Board.

## **214 APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DEPARTMENT CHAIRS**

- 214.1 Subject to the approval of the CAO, the Dean shall appoint the chair of each department. Each appointee shall serve at the pleasure of the Dean, and shall be subject to annual review and evaluation by the Dean.
- 214.2 The Dean shall consult with the members of the faculty of a department on the appointment of the department chair, pursuant to a uniform process approved by the CAO.
- 214.3 To be eligible to serve as a chair, a person shall be a member of the department faculty who holds the rank of Associate Professor or Professor. A Dean may appoint a faculty member who does not meet the requirements of this subsection to be "acting" chairperson for a term of not more than one (1) year.
- 214.4 Each department chair shall be paid his or her regular faculty salary for services performed during the academic year. If the services of the department chair are required for all or part of a summer term, compensation for those services shall be determined by the President in consultation with the CAO and the Deans.

- 214.5 A department chair shall not be required to provide services as chair beyond the academic year. If a chair is not available to provide services needed beyond the academic year, the Dean may appoint an "acting" chair to serve during the interim period.
- 214.6 The faculty of a department may petition the Dean for the removal of the department chair by two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the regular, full-time faculty of the department. The decision to remove or retain the chair shall be at the discretion of the Dean after consultation with the CAO.
- 214.7 Reduced teaching loads requirements for each department chair shall be determined by the Dean and approved by the CAO.

## **200 THE PRESIDENT OF THE UNIVERSITY**

- 200.1 The Chief Executive Officer of the University, appointed by the Board of Trustees (the "Board") pursuant to D.C. Official Code § 38-1202.06(10), shall be the President of the University of the District of Columbia (the "President"). The President shall report directly to the Board.
- 200.2 Whenever a vacancy exists in the position~~office~~ of the President, or whenever the Board has notice that a vacancy will exist, the Board shall appoint a committee to be Chaired by a voting member of the Board to conduct an orderly search for candidates for appointment to the ~~office~~ position of President. When the ~~office~~-position of the President is vacant, the Board shall appoint an individual to serve as Interim President or Acting President within 30 days of the vacancy.
- 200.3 Appointment of the President, including the renewal of an existing appointment, shall be by affirmative vote of a majority of the Board.
- 200.4 The terms and conditions of the appointment of the President, including compensation and benefits, shall be set forth in a contract of employment which shall be negotiated with the appointee in a manner directed by the Board and shall be subject to ratification by an affirmative vote of the majority of the Board.
- 200.5 A housing allowance or a University residence in the District of Columbia may be provided for the President.

## **201 DISMISSAL OF THE PRESIDENT FOR CAUSE**

- 201.1 The Board may dismiss the President at any time for cause.
- 201.2 Upon request made within ten (10) calendar days after the Board action of dismissal, the President shall be furnished a statement of the charges against him or her.
- 201.3 If the President demands a hearing on his or her dismissal, a hearing shall be held within ten (10) calendar days after the receipt of the charges by the President.
- 201.4 The hearing shall be held before the Committee of the Whole of the Board, in executive session, in accordance with procedures adopted by the Board. The President shall be entitled to present a response and defense to the charges presented, either personally or through counsel of the President's choosing.

- 201.5 The Board may retain special counsel to represent the Board for the purposes of this section as the Board deems appropriate.
- 201.6 Dismissal of the President for cause shall be by a majority of the Board.

## **202 GENERAL AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT**

- 202.1 The President shall have authority and responsibility for the academic and administrative affairs and operations of the University and the components thereof established under Section 100.3 subject to the provisions of this Title and applicable law.
- 202.2 The President may delegate to his or her subordinates any of the duties and authority of the office of President, except the following:
- (a) Service as a non-voting ex officio member of the Board; and
  - (b) Responsibilities reserved solely to the President under the provisions of this subtitle or other applicable law or regulation.
- 202.3 The President shall fix the calendar of the University.
- 202.4 Upon the recommendation of the faculty, the President shall, in the name of the Board, award degrees to candidates who meet all of the requirements and prerequisites for the respective degree or concentration.
- 202.5 The President shall provide for awarding fellowships, scholarships, and academic prizes from appropriations, gifts, or endowments approved for these purposes.
- 202.6 Subject to the provisions of this ~~title~~ Title and applicable law, the President may appoint, promote, demote, and dismiss University employees. The President may also determine compensation for all administrators and non-administrators at pay grade level 2A and below; non-administrators. The President shall recommend for approval by the Board through the Executive Committee, or committee determined by the Board Chair the compensation of all administrators and non-administrators at pay grade level 1A and above.

## **203 FUND-RAISING AND GIFTS**

- 203.1 The President shall develop, initiate, implement, and approve fund-raising campaigns for the benefit of the University.

203.2 The President may determine, consistent with any expressed intent of the donor, if applicable:

(a) The purpose(s) for which the gift shall be used; and

(b) Whether income or principal amount, or both, shall be used.

203.3 The President may utilize gifts to support established University programs or to fund new or special programs, in accordance with the provisions of this subtitle.

203.4 The President shall determine whether any condition on the receipt of a gift, or the purpose(s) for which the gift will be used, will require expenditure of additional or supplementary funds by the University and shall provide for inclusion of required expenditures in the University financial plan subject to Board approval. In no event shall the acceptance of any gift by the University constitute a commitment requiring expenditures in excess of budgeted items.

203.5 The President may return to the donor all or any unused portion of a gift of personal property when the purposes of the gift have been fulfilled or fulfillment has become impossible or impractical and alternative uses are precluded.

## **204 BUDGET AND FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION**

204.1 The President shall annually prepare a budget for the University, including a plan for operating and capital expenditures and shall provide the Board copies of the proposal and all necessary back up documentation not less than 10-5 business days prior to any Board or Committee on Budget and Finance for review and consideration of approval. As part of the budget process, the President shall prepare a request to the Mayor and Council for District appropriations for the support of the University subject to approval by the Board prior to submission to the Mayor or the Council of the District of Columbia of a final budget.

204.2 Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the President shall prepare a financial plan for control of expenditures by the University. Upon approval of the financial plan by the Board, the President shall manage the expenditures of the University in accordance with the financial plan. All modifications of the financial plan including shifting or reallocations of funds within programs or other areas over \$250,000 must be approved by the Budget and Finance Committee and reported to the Board.

Cumulative modifications during the fiscal year of the financial plan that are \$1 million and over must be approved by the Board.

204.3 During the fiscal year, the President shall recommend to the Board for its approval modifications of the financial plan based on changes in the District appropriation, actual or projected revenues, cost of programs and operations, academic program needs, or other factors. Reprogramming of appropriated budget authority shall be in accordance with applicable District law.

204.4 The President shall make timely recommendations to the Board for the establishment or modification of tuition, fees, and other assessments to be paid by students of the University.

204.5 The President shall make recommendations to the Board for a capital improvement program, including recommendations for the addition of a new project or a deletion, substantial modification, or change in the priority of an approved project for Board approval and shall provide all necessary back up documentation necessary not less than 10-5 business days prior to any Board or Committee on Budget and Finance for review and consideration of approval.

204.6 The President may negotiate and approve indirect cost rates to be applied to contracts and grants. The use of indirect cost funds shall be included in the annual financial plan.

204.7 The President may approve the write-off of debts owed to the University deemed uncollectible, subject to ratification by the Board as part of the financial plan. The President shall ensure that adequate reserves are maintained to allow for uncollectible debts.

204.8 The President may write off routine disallowed claims under grants and contracts against funds received from the federal government in reimbursement of indirect costs.

## **205 EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS**

205.1 Except as otherwise specifically provided in this section or in this title Title, the President may execute on behalf of the University all contracts and other documents, including documents to solicit and accept pledges, gifts, and grants.

205.2 Notwithstanding any provision of this section to the contrary, the President may execute all documents necessary in the exercise of the President's duties when an emergency precludes prior submission to the

Board; Provided, that in all cases the President shall submit to the Board within forty-eight 48 hours a written justification for actions taken, the impact, including fiscal, of the actions and a request for ratification of the action(s) by majority vote of the Board.

- 205.3 The President may provide for execution claims against debtors in bankruptcy, in receivership, or in liquidation, and against estates of deceased persons.
- 205.4 Specific authorization by the Board shall be required for the following documents or any transaction that would establish an exception to the University Rules as set forth in this subtitle:
- (a) Any commitment for more than seven (7) years; or
  - (b) All Capital Procurements as presented in the Capital Budget on annual basis;
  - (c) Each transaction that would require any of the following:
    - (1) Modification of the financial plan in excess of the reprogramming authority delegated to the President;
    - (2) Modification of the Capital Budget; or
    - (3) Obligating the University to expenditures or costs for which there is no established funding source.
  - (d) Any contracts and change orders/modifications, other than those already approved in the Capital Budget, resulting in a commitment of greater than four million dollars (\$4,000,000) in a single fiscal year for any Capital Procurement; and
  - (e) Any commitment greater than one million dollars (\$1,000,000) in a single fiscal year for all other University Procurements.
- 205.5 Specific authorization by the Board shall be required for any of the following:
- (a) Acceptance of any pledge or gift in excess of one million dollars (\$ 1,000,000) in cash or estimated value;
  - (b) Agreements for the provision of employee group insurance benefits;

- (c) Affiliation agreements involving direct financial obligations or commitments by the University to programs or projects not included in the financial plan;
- (d) Applications for licenses to operate radio or television broadcast equipment; and
- (e) Agreements under which the University assumes liability for the conduct of persons other than University officers, employees, agents, students, invitees, and guests. This restriction shall not apply to agreements under which the University assumes responsibility for the condition of property in its custody.

## **206 REPEALED**

## **207 RESERVED**

## **208 COMPENSATION OF ADMINISTRATORS**

208.1 The Board shall determine ~~Executive~~ compensation for administrators and non-administrators at Grade level 1A and above, including initial compensation upon appointment and subsequent changes in compensation, upon recommendation of the President through the Executive Committee or appropriate committee determined by the Board Chair.

208.2 The President shall determine compensation for each executive appointment at grade level 2A and below, including initial compensation upon appointment and subsequent changes in compensation, in accordance with the level of responsibility of the position, the experience and qualifications of the appointee, and other factors, in accordance with the administrative pay scale approved by the Board.

## **209 RESERVED**

## **210 EXECUTIVE APPOINTMENTS: GENERAL PROVISIONS**

210.1 In order to allow the President to appoint highly qualified and experienced executive talent to senior administrative positions, as well as to provide

flexibility in making top administrative appointments, the President is authorized to make executive appointments to designated positions in the Educational Service, in accordance with the provisions of §§ 210 through 212 subject to the provisions of this ~~title~~ Title and applicable law.

- 210.2 Except as required under § 212, an executive appointment may be made on a noncompetitive basis. Each executive appointee shall be qualified based on job description submitted by the President and approved by the Executive Committee for the position to which he or she is appointed. The Executive Committee shall also review the qualifications of the appointee being considered prior to the appointment being made.
- 210.3 Executive appointments are "at will" appointments and executive appointees shall serve at the pleasure of the President. A person serving under an executive appointment shall not have any job tenure or protection in that position. An executive appointment may be terminated at any time without appeal or right to compensation.

~~210.4 The President may appoint a current employee to serve in an "acting" status in a position designated to be filled by executive appointment without requiring that employee to resign from his or her current position. Compensation of appointees with "acting" status shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of § 210.6 and other applicable subsections of this chapter. Service in an "acting" status in a position designated to be filled by executive appointment shall be limited to one (1) year. The President shall seek Board approval for an extension forty five (45) days prior to the year ending if he/she determines and can demonstrate that additional time is needed. Should an extension be approved by the Board, the President shall provide the Board immediately with a plan and time line for making the permanent appointment within ninety days (90) of the end of the one (1) year period should the appointment be necessary. The Board may approve an extension or renewal of an acting appointment for no more than one (1) additional year due to extenuating circumstances as determined by the Board.~~

~~210.5 The President shall determine compensation for each executive appointment at grade level 2A and below, including initial compensation upon appointment and subsequent changes in compensation, in accordance with the level of responsibility of the position, the experience and qualifications of the appointee, and other factors, in accordance with the administrative pay scale approved by the Board.~~

~~210.6 The Board shall determine Executive compensation for administrators and non-administrators at Grade level 1A and above, including initial compensation upon appointment and subsequent changes in compensation, upon recommendation of the President through the Executive Committee or appropriate committee determined by the Board Chair.~~

~~210.7 Compensation of administrators of the University with “acting” status shall be approved in the same manner in §§ 210.5 210.6.~~

210.~~84~~ A University employee who is a permanent incumbent and who is serving in a position designated to be filled by executive appointment shall retain all the rights and benefits of his or her permanent employment status and shall not be converted to an executive appointment. However, once the incumbent vacates the position (due to reassignment, resignation, or other reason), the person subsequently appointed to fill the position shall be subject to the executive appointment provisions of this section.

210.~~95~~ The President shall not enter into any agreements with interim/acting executive appointees that grant tenure or right of employment in any faculty, administrative or other University position unless such person holds permanent or tenured faculty rank at the University or approved by the Executive Committee.

~~210.10 There shall be no interim appointments to executive positions. Any existing appointments shall be acting and shall expire ninety (90) days from the final rulemaking of this section.~~

## **211 EXECUTIVE APPOINTMENTS: NON-ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATORS**

211.1 The following administrative positions shall be filled by executive appointment and shall be ratified by the majority vote of the Board:

- (a) ~~Chief Operating Officer/~~ (COO): Executive Vice President~~Non-academic vice presidents;~~ The COO has university wide authority over business operations. The COO reports to the President.
- (b) Chief Student Development and Support Officer (CSDSO): The CSDSO has university wide authority over student support and student success. The CSDSO reports to the President.~~General Counsel; and~~
- (c) ~~Campus Executive Officer—~~Provost of the Community College;: The University of the District of Columbia Community College is a Branch campus of the University. It offers courses in educational programs leading to an associate’s degree or certificate. The administrative head of the eCommunity eCollege is titled the Campus Executive Officer~~Provost of the Community College, and reports to the President.~~

(e) Chief of Staff: The Chief of Staff has authority over external affairs, coordinates the activities of the Offices of the Board and President, as well as the work of the Cabinet. The Chief of Staff reports to the President.

(f) General Counsel; and The General Counsel provides advice and counsel to the University stakeholders on all legal matters, and directs the activities of outside counsel working on behalf of the University. The General Counsel reports to the President with a dotted line to the Board.

(g) Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor is responsible for conducting -internal audits of the University's operations. The Internal Auditor reports to the President with a dotted line to the Board.

211.2 The President may designate any position which reports directly to the President or any senior management or legal position of Administrative Salary Grade Level of 2B or higher which reports directly to a vice president to be filled by executive appointment.

211.3 The President, in his or her discretion, may conduct a formal or informal search or provide for a recruitment process to fill a position by executive appointment under this section, except that the President shall provide for a formal search and selection process, including active faculty and Board participation, to fill the position of Campus Executive OfficerProvost of the Community College. -

211.4 An employee of the University with permanent status who accepts an executive appointment under this section shall not have reversionary rights to return to the same position upon termination of the executive appointment. However, upon termination of the executive appointment, the former executive appointee shall retain his or her employment status at the University and shall be assigned to a position at the same level that he or she held at the time of the executive appointment.

211.5 A person newly hired under this section may, upon termination of the executive appointment, apply for competitive appointment to a position in the Educational Service for which he or she is qualified.

## **212 EXECUTIVE APPOINTMENTS: ACADEMIC ADMINISTRATORS**

212.1 \_\_\_\_\_ The following positions shall be filled by executive appointment:

	<p>(a) <u>Chief Academic Officer (CAO);</u><del>Provost;</del> <u>The Chief Academic Officer has university wide authority over academic program coordination and quality. The Chief Academic Officer</u><del>CAO reports to the President.</del></p> <p>(b) Deans of academic colleges;</p> <p><del>(c) Associate and assistant deans of academic colleges; and</del></p> <p><del>(d) Community College Chief Executive Officer.</del></p>
212.2	The appointment of faculty members to serve in administrative positions which report directly to the <del>Provost</del> <u>CAO or</u> , <del>Community College Chief Executive Officer or a dean</del> <u>Dean</u> shall be an executive appointment.
212.3	The President shall provide for a formal search and selection process, including active faculty and Board participation, to fill the positions of <u>CAO Chief Academic Officer/Provost and, a Academic Dean, and</u> <del>Chief Executive Officer of the Community College.</del> If the <del>Provost, CAO Community College Chief Executive Officer,</del> or an <u>academic Academic dean Dean</u> position is vacated, the President shall name an acting for a period not to exceed one (1) year from the date of the vacancy, and administrative leave shall not be considered time in the position. <del>For other executive appointments under this section, the President, in his or her discretion, may conduct a formal or informal search or provide for a recruitment process to fill a position by executive appointment. Such process shall be completed within one (1) year of the time of vacancy.</del>
212.4	A person newly hired for the position of <u>Provost CAO</u> or <u>academic Academic dean Dean</u> may be granted academic title and rank with tenure in the department in which he or she is qualified at the recommendation of the President and approval by the Board through the Executive Committee or Committee designated by the Chair.
212.5	A person who holds permanent or tenured faculty rank at the University and who accepts an appointment to an academic administrative position under this section shall not be required to resign from his or her faculty position and shall have the right to return to his or her faculty position upon termination of the executive appointment.
212.6	During a simultaneous appointment to an academic administrative position under this section, a faculty member shall be subject to the terms and conditions of employment set forth in the executive appointment. The

faculty member shall be deemed to be on leave of absence from his or her faculty position, but shall retain simultaneous faculty title and rank.

- 212.7 When a person holding faculty rank accepts an executive appointment to an academic administrative position, he or she shall be a full-time, twelve (12) month employee and shall receive compensation and benefits as set forth in the executive appointment, in accordance with the provisions of § ~~240.5~~208.2, until termination of the executive appointment.

### **213 ACTING APPOINTMENTS**

- 213.1 The President may appoint a current employee to serve in an "acting" status in a position designated to be filled by executive appointment without requiring that employee to resign from his or her current position.
- 213.2 Compensation of appointees with "acting" status shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of §§ 208, 210, 211, 212 and other applicable subsections of this chapter.
- 213.3 Service in an "acting" status in a position designated to be filled by executive appointment shall be limited to one (1) year. The President shall seek Board approval for an extension forty five (45) days prior to the year ending if he/she determines and can demonstrate that additional time is needed. Should an extension be approved by the Board, the President shall provide the Board immediately with a plan and time line for making the permanent appointment within ninety days (90) of the end of the one (1) year period should the appointment be necessary. The Board may approve an extension or renewal of an acting appointment for no more than one (1) additional year due to extenuating circumstances as determined by the Board.

### **214 APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DEPARTMENT CHAIRS**

- 214.1 Subject to the approval of the ~~Provost~~CAO, the ~~dean~~Dean shall appoint the chair of each department. Each appointee shall serve at the pleasure of the ~~dean~~Dean, and shall be subject to annual review and evaluation by the ~~dean~~Dean.
- 214.2 The ~~dean~~Dean shall consult with the members of the faculty of a department on the appointment of the department chair, pursuant to a uniform process approved by the ~~Provost~~CAO.

- 214.3 To be eligible to serve as a chair, a person shall be a member of the department faculty who holds the rank of Associate Professor or Professor. A ~~dean~~Dean may appoint a faculty member who does not meet the requirements of this subsection to be "acting" chairperson for a term of not more than one (1) year.
- 214.4 Each department chair shall be paid his or her regular faculty salary for services performed during the academic year. If the services of the department chair are required for all or part of a summer term, compensation for those services shall be determined by the President in consultation with the ~~Provost~~CAO and the ~~deans~~Deans.
- 214.5 A department chair shall not be required to provide services as chair beyond the academic year. If a chair is not available to provide services needed beyond the academic year, the ~~dean~~Dean may appoint an "acting" chair to serve during the interim period.
- 214.6 The faculty of a department may petition the ~~dean~~Dean for the removal of the department chair by two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the regular, full-time faculty of the department. The decision to remove or retain the chair shall be at the discretion of the ~~dean~~Dean after consultation with the ~~Provost~~CAO.
- 214.7 Reduced teaching loads requirements for each department chair shall be determined by the ~~dean~~Dean and approved by the ~~Provost~~CAO.



Office of the Chief Financial Officer

Donald L. Rickford  
Chief Financial Officer

## FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT

**TO:** The Board of Trustees  
**FROM:** Office of the Chief Financial Officer (UDC) *JAR*  
**DATE:** October 21, 2015  
**SUBJECT:** DCMR Proposed Amendment

---

### Conclusion

It is concluded that there is no significant fiscal impact associated with the Board of Trustees' authority to adopt, prescribe, amend, repeal, and enforce bylaws, rules, and regulations that it believes necessary for the governance and administration of the University.

### Background

Pursuant to 8B DCMR the Board of Trustees intends to revise its regulations to reflect administrative and management changes to the structure of the University through the amendment to Chapter 2 of the University Rules. The changes include the titles of University Administrators.

### Financial Impact

The Office of the Chief Financial Officer of UDC has approved this request based on the information provided. We do not anticipate any risks at this time.